

Manual Periodic Tasks Compano Online Software

Version 1.2

Bestand	COS_Manual_Periodic_Tasks_L03.docx
Datum	9-10-2023

Softwar
Online
🖉 Compano
A.

indre 💙 💭

Inhoud

1	Intro	oduction	3
	1.1	Concepts	3
2	Peri	odic tasks	4
	2.1	Adding a task	5
	2.2	Common settings	5
	2.2.7	Active	6
	2.2.2	2 Periodic task type	6
	2.2.3	3 Description (required)	7
	2.2.4	4 Frequency	7
	2.2.5	5 Sequence no	7
	2.3	Starting and stopping tasks	7
	2.3.2	1 Starting a task manually	7
	2.3.2	2 Stopping a task manually	8
3	Add	itional settings per periodic task type	9
	3.1	Import	9
	3.1.1	1 Custom layout	10
	3.1.2	2 Automated imports (industry standard data)	16
	3.1.3	3 Interdependent imports	16
	3.2	Export	16
	3.3	Feed	17
	3.4	Magento	18
	3.5	Import 2BA	19
	3.5.1	I Import 2BA: Multiple suppliers	20
	3.6	Export Artikelbeheer.nl	21

1 Introduction

This manual describes the use of Periodic Tasks to automate certain COS-processes, such as Import, Export 2BA, Export, Feed export, etc.

1.1 Concepts

COS

💕 🌮 💭

Compano Online Software application. Version of the COS-application are, for instance K05, L02, L03, etc.

PIM

Product Information Management system, used to manage product and item data. Data can be communicated to data pools, product websites, catalogues, web shops, etc.

Shared application

Your own COS-environment, which shares a database and application with other Compano customers.

Entity

Data object in COS, for instance Product, Item, Assortment, Attachment, Price, etc. For most entities in COS an overview has been created.

Record One instance of a data object in COS, for instance one product or one item.

Data field

One field containing data, such as a price in Euros, Diameter in millimetres, etc.

Import

Import of data into data fields in COS.

The data source is often an Excel or text-based data file, but could also be a data file which makes use of (international) *standard exchange standard*, such as DICO (INSBOU/SALES), BMEcat, FAB-DIS, etc.

Export

Export of data out of data fields in COS.

The export is often an Excel or text-based file. but could also be a data file which makes use of (international) *standard exchange standard*, such as DICO (INSBOU/SALES), BMEcat, FAB-DIS, etc.

Standard exchange format

Several standard formats have been defined to exchange data for the construction and engineering sector, for example: PAB, DICO/SALES, BMEcat, FAB-DIS. These Data Exchange Standards facilitate the sharing of structured data across different information systems.

Import layout

Layout for importing data into of COS. Import layouts can be customized by the user.

Export layout

Layout for exporting data out of COS. Export layouts can be customized by the user.

Delta import

A *Delta Import* compares data in the source file with data in COS. On import only new or changed data is imported.

Full import

A *Full Import* compares data in the source file with data in COS. All data in COS is overwritten with data from the import file.

Feed

A data feed in the XML- or JSON-format, used for exporting data from COS.

2 Periodic tasks

Automation of certain tasks such as daily or weekly Imports or Exports can save considerable time. This can be accomplished by configuring Periodic Tasks . These tasks can be set to run automatically, according to a set *frequency* and *time*, during the server off-hours (night and early morning), with some time excluded for server maintenance. Tasks can also be *started* and *stopped* manually.

System tasks take precedence over tasks set by the user. Tasks can also be allotted a sequence number to indicate in which order the tasks should be run, thus allowing for task dependency.

Periodic tasks can be set up (and started) under *System > Configuration > Periodic tasks*.



The overview of Periodic tasks allows for *Adding*, *Modifying*, *Deleting* and (manually) *Starting* a task:

Periodic tasks Menu View	Edit Functions
▶	
Filter	Search All Details Manage screen layouts Help
Navigation 🛞	 A Periodic task type Description
Configuration	Import Weekly import assortiment
Edit 🛞	
Add Modify	
Delete record(s)	
Functions (S) Start task	

🍠 🌮 💭

2.1 Adding a task

Several, different kinds of Periodic Tasks are available, each geared towards a specific *type* of task. For an overview, see: <u>2.2.2 PERIODIC TASK TYPE</u>.

To add a Periodic Task:

1. Through the Menu, go to *System > Configuration > Periodic tasks*.

Ű	Packaging forms
**	Periodic tasks
	Product groups
➡.	Product list

2. Under Edit, click on *+Add* to add a new task:

Periodic tasks Menu	View Edit Functions	
Filter	Search All Details Unica Help	,
Navigation	🛞 📤 A Sequence no Periodic task t	type
Configuration	1 Import 2BA	
	1 Import 2BA	
Edit	 2 Import 2BA 	
Add	3 Import 2BA	
A second	4 Import 2BA	
Modify	5 Import 2BA	
Delete record(s)	6 Import 2BA	
••	7 Import 2BA	
Functions	8 Import 2BA	
Start task	9 Import 2BA	
	10 Import 2BA	

- 3. In the pop-up window, fill out the settings and options for the task:
 - a. See paragraph <u>2.2 COMMON SETTINGS</u>
 - b. And, for detailed settings, see chapter <u>3 ADDITIONAL SETTINGS PER PERIODIC TASK</u> <u>TYPE</u>

2.2 Common settings

Common settings need to be filled out for each type of Periodic Task:

🍠 🌮 💭

Edit - Import Weekly import	ssortiment	
Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	🚯 🔿 Yes 🖲 No	
Periodic task type	The first sector	~
Description		
Frequency	Weekly 🗸	
Day of the week	Monday 🖌	
Sequence no	(1)	
Container		
Import file	X	

2.2.1 Active

Active: Set to **Yes** to run the scheduled task automatically with the set frequency and at the set time. When set to **No**, the task is (temporarily) disabled.

2.2.2 Periodic task type

Periodic task type: The task type determines what kind of task is to be performed. The following common task types are available¹:

Add - New periodic tasks		
Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	🚯 🖲 Yes 🔿 No	
Periodic task type	Feed	✓
Task entity	Import	- 🗶
Description	Teed	
Layout	Magento	- X+
Compress	Import 2BA	
Frequency	#ExportAB2	
Day of the week	Monday 🗸	
Sequence no	1	
Export directory	X	
Source or target		

- Import: Import Item or Product data
- Export: Export (Item) data using a specific exchange or custom format
- Feed: Export a pre-defined data feed (XML only)
- Magento: Export for the *Magento*® e-commerce platform (web shop)
- Import 2BA: Import any assortment available through data pool 2BA. <u>Note</u>: Only available with module 2BA.
- Export Artikelbeheer: Export any assortment to data pool Artikelbeheer.nl <u>Note</u>: Only available with module Artikelbeheer.nl.

¹ Other task types are available on request. Please contact <u>sales@compano.com</u> for options and pricing.

2.2.3 Description (required)

Description: Type a *Description* for the periodic task. For instance: **Weekly import of sales** conditions for APAC.

2.2.4 Frequency

Frequency: Set the frequency with which the task is to be executed. Options are:

- Daily: The task is scheduled daily during server off-hours. <u>Note</u>: Daily tasks will only be started *after* their nightly recycle has finished.
- Interval: The task is scheduled according to an interval period; you will have to set the interval period in minutes.
- Weekly: The task is scheduled weekly. Additionally, you will have to select which *Day of the Week* the task will be performed.
- Biweekly: The task is scheduled every two weeks; you will have to specify *two Days of the month* at which the task is to be executed.
- Monthly: The task is scheduled monthly. Additionally, you will have to enter which *Day of the Month* the task will be performed.
- Time of day: The task is scheduled daily at a time of your choosing ; you will have to enter the exact *Time* at which time the task is to be performed.

2.2.4.1 Time

Some remarks considering time:

- Time for Periodic tasks needs to be specified in the 24-hour format, for instance **12:53**.
- Periodic tasks can be scheduled between 23:00 and 6:00 hours *only* (!). The remaining hours are reserved for server maintenance.
- *System tasks take precedence* over tasks set by the user. Therefore, periodic tasks only start *after* the system task(s) have finished.
- Execution of some tasks can take up considerable time. To reflect this, an *end time* is set after the task has been completed. Should the next task include any data that was affected by the previous task, this task will be performed taking into account all data changes as of the end time that was set.

2.2.5 Sequence no

Certain tasks can be dependent upon completion of an earlier task. Setting the *Sequence no* of a task, allows for ordering tasks. Simply, enter an order number for task. Tasks are executed in ascending order by sequence number.

Example

Products are imported from a CSV file as a first task (sequence no. 1). As a second task (sequence no. 2), Items are imported from a CSV file. The import order is important, as Items cannot be linked to Products if the Product information is not imported first.

2.3 Starting and stopping tasks

Periodic tasks can also be started and stopped manually.

2.3.1 Starting a task manually

To start a task manually:

💕 🌮 💭

- 1. Through the Menu, go to *System > Configuration > Periodic Tasks*.
- 2. In the overview, select the task that you need to start and, under Functions, click on *Start*:

Periodic tasks Menu View	Edit Functions	
».		
Filter	Search All Details Manage screen layouts Help	
Navigation 🛞	A Periodic task type Description	
Configuration	Import Veekly import assortim	ent
Edit 🛞		
Add		
Modify		
Delete record(s)		
Functions 🛞	*	
Start task		
Start task		

3. The application will ask for confirmation in a pop-up window:

-		×
	Do you want to perform the selected tasks: • Import Weekly import assortiment	
	OK Cancel	

4. Click on *OK* to start the task.

2.3.2 Stopping a task manually

A running task can be stopped manually:

- 1. Through the menu, go to System > Background tasks.
- 2. Select the task to be stopped and, under Functions, click on Stop.

Background tasks Menu	View Functions		
· · · ·		○ .	
Search	All Details Manage scree	n layouts Help	
Functions 🛞	▲ Name	S	Description St
Manipulate	Compano	Busy	data dila Campa
Refresh	Compano	Finished	Contraction of the
STOP Stop			

3. Soms tasks are stopped immediately, other tasks will run in 'blocks' and will be stopped after the running 'block' has finished processing.

8

🍠 🌮 💭

💕 🌮 💭

3 Additional settings per periodic task type

Depending on the task type, additional options need to be set.

Note: Common settings are discussed in paragraph 2.2 COMMON SETTINGS

3.1 Import

The Import task type can be used to import data using the custom formats Excel, CSV, or Unicode.

To be able to make use of the Import type periodic task, you will need to apply for a second FPT(S) account for uploading data. Note that this is a paid service; for options and pricing, please contact <u>sales@compano.com</u>

ctive	① ● Yes ○ No	
eriodic task type	Import 🗸	
ask entity	Product	- X
escription	Test import product	
ssortments	Opple Lighting (OPP)	- 🗙
ormat type	Custom layout	
ayout	Excel import lay-out 'Basis Producten' on Screen products	- *+
elta	① ● Yes ○ No	
emove file after processing	<mark>○ yes ● No</mark>	
requency	Weekly ~	
ay of the week	Monday V	
equence no	1	
mport file	X	
ource or target	\Data\Environments\000001\Uploads\Import\PIM_Products_V2.z	zip

Settings:

- Periodic task type: Select the type Import
- Task entity (required): Select the entity, for instance Product or Item, for which data will be imported.
- Assortments (optional): Select the assortment for which the data needs to be imported. Note: This is an optional choice, dependent upon the selected task entity.
- Format type: When importing data from an external FTP server, set the format type to: Industry standard. Alternatively, for industry standard files the Compano FTP server can be used in combination with the the AutoImport option. See the Manual Universal Import / Export, Appendix C, which is available from the Compano Help website. Set the Format type to Custom layout when using a custom data file and custom import layout.
- Delta: Set to Yes to import only new or changed data, as compared to data already present in your COS application. Set to No for a full import. Important: When set to No, existing data

💕 🌮 💭

in COS will be *overwritten* and any existing records which are not present in the import will be *archived* (!)

- Remove file after processing: Set to **Yes** to remove the imported data file from the Compano server after processing.
- Import file: Upload and/or manually select a data file on the Compano FTPS server, that is to be used for import.
- Source or target: Set an external (S)FTP(S) location for the data file that is to be used for import (Source). <u>Note</u>: FTPS login fields will appear when the source is set to an external source.

Important: Either select an Import file or set a Source for the import; never use both options.

3.1.1 Custom layout

The format type **Custom layout** assumes that you will offer:

- A data file for import (Excel- CSV, or TXT-format)
- A custom import layout

The Import data file can either be uploaded and selected manually, or the File Transfer Protocol (FTPS) can be used to transfer the data file to the COS server. In both cases, a default upload location is to be used:



The custom import layout should be prepared beforehand through *System > Layouts*. Please refer to the *Manual Universal Import/Export* for a detailed explanation, which is available from the <u>Compano Help website</u>.

3.1.1.1 Manual upload

To manually upload a data file:

- 1. On the Periodic task Edit pop-up window:
 - a. Layout: Select a prepared Import layout that fits your import file.

🍠 🌮 💭

Active	③ Yes ● No	
Periodic task type	Import V	
Task entity	Assortments 👻	
Description	Weekly import assortiment	
Format type	Custom layout	
Layout	Text import lay-out 'import assortment' on Screen assortments 🔷 😽	
Delta	(1) ● Yes ○ No	
Remove file after processing	O Yes 🖲 No	
Frequency	Weekly	
Day of the week	Monday 🗸	
Sequence no	1	
Import file	×	
Source or target		

c. In the next pop-up window, click on + Upload.

	Format type	Lavout	Frequency	Sour
Choose				×
+ + 当 😏	ڬ 🗙 🚽 Upload			_
🚞 Import				

d. *Select* (1) a data file from your PC/laptop/server:

🔹 🔄 🖸 🔛 🗙 🐈 Upload	
Import	
🗐 Upload	
Excel-Products.xlsx	Select
file exists?	Select ×Remo
	Select ×Remo
Max file size allowed: 12.00 MB File extensions allowed: *.* Upload	

- e. Click on Upload (2).
- f. Select the uploaded data file and click on OK:

💕 🌮 🛄



2. The import data file location has now been set:

Periodic tasks Memo			
Active		res 🖲 No	
Periodic task type	Imp	port 🗸 🗸	
Task entity	Ass	ortments	- 💥
Description	(I) We	ekly import assortiment	
Format type	Cu	stom layout 🗸	
Layout	Text	import lay-out 'Import assortment' on Screen assortments	- X+/
Delta	(i) (i)	res O No	
Remove file after processing	0	res 🖲 No	
Frequency	We	ekly 🗸	
Day of the week	Mo	nday 🗸	
Sequence no	1		
Import file	Exce	I-Products.xlsx X	
	/Da	ta/Environments/000003/Uploads/Import/Excel-Products.xlsx	
Source or target			
		Edit the provious and Edit the port and Seven report	Cancel

3. Click on Save record.

3.1.1.2 FTPS upload

Data files for import can also be upload through FTPS. This way imports can be automated provided that any new data files that are uploaded to the Compano server always have the *exact* same filename.

<u>Important</u>: For uploads through FTPS, an *extra* FTPS user account is needed, which is a *paid service* Please contact <u>sales@compano.com</u> for information on options and pricing and inform your customer.

Example

First, add a (new) FTPS user account; also see the *Technical Documentation FTPS*.

- 1. Make sure to manually add an **Uploads** folder and, optionally, any subfolders for data files, for instance **Import**; also see the <u>*Technical Documentation FTPS*</u>.
- Next, set the FTPS root folder to, for instance: /Data/Environments/[Environment_Number]/Uploads/[Import]
 - a. In the Add new user window, next to *Rootmapftp*, click on the -button:

🌱 狑 💭

User Groups Memo		
Jser interface	FTPS V	
Contact (local)	· *	/
Username	UPLOAD	
Email		
Language	en-GB English (United Kingdom)	
Name		
FTP		
Username	C03035UPLOADPreRelease	
RootMapFtp	Import x /Data/Environments/000003/Uploads/Import	
Security		
Allowed IP Addresses	() 68.151.11.17	
Active user	● Yes ○ No	
License		
	○ Yes ● No	
Read only		
Read only		

b. In the pop-up window, open the *Uploads* folder and select the *Import* folder:

96	Choose	
	🗲 🔶 😋 💥 🐥 Upload	^
rf	🚞 000003	
Ie	🛓 🖓 🚞 Attachment	
е		
5		
е		
-	🖃 💴 Uploads	. I
	🖅 🛄 AutoCheck	
	AutoImport	
M	🗐 🛄 Import	
	🚞 Failed	
	🚞 OwnFolder	
	Processed OK Canc	el 🖕
e	4	•

- c. Click on OK to set the root folder.
- 3. Optional: Set or change any security options².
- 4. Save the FTPS user record.

Now, make sure to upload a (custom) data file for import to the *Uploads/Import* folder, using the FTPS login details of the extra FPT user account³:

• Username: Through the Menu, go to *System > Users*. You will find the username of the FTPS account in the Overview:

² List the IP addresses from which FTP can be used. This is mandatory as of April 1st, 2023.

³ The login details of your FTPS upload account should have been provided by your Compano Consultant.

🥩 🌮 💭



• Password: In the User Overview, select the FTPS upload account and, under Functions, click on *Send Password*.

Users Menu View Edit	Functions Im	port / Export	
Filter Be aware, there is a filter active!	Search Manipula	ate Login as Change Password Se	end password Create Administrato
Navigation 🛞	Archived	Username 🔺	Name
Memo (0)		C03035C03035PreReleasePreRelea	se
	<u>۲</u>	C03035UPLOADPreRelease	
Attachments (0)		and the second second	internation of the
Edit		1000	
Add			
Modify		the second se	and the second second
Delete record(s)		Contraction of the	10000
Functions			
🗞 Manipulate			
📕 Login as			
Change Password			
Send password			

The password will be displayed in the pop-up window:

Jurgen Immink					
Send password					
Send password					
Mail template	Versturen wachtwoord				
Send to:					
Contents:					
🖉 🔏 🗈 🔁 🔊 - 🔍 - 🕼 🖏 🛍	B I U abe				
Dear					
Hierbij sturen wij het door u opgevraagde wachtwoord.					
Wachtwoord: Ftm 8T					
U kunt hiermee inloggen op <u>PIM</u> .					
Als u niet om deze mail heeft verzocht, dan ra beveiligen van uw account.	aden we u aan direct contact m∉				

Next, prepare a (new) Periodic Task of type Import.

	-
	B
	>
	2
- 22	<u>+</u>
	0
	S
	-
	a
	-
	\circ
	-
	0
	2
	B
	d
	3
	5
	<u> </u>
	-
1	2
5	\sim
Q.	0
-	

🍠 🌮 🛴

Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	(1) • Yes O No	
Periodic task type	Import V	
Task entity	Product 👻 💥	
Description	(1) Monthly import of product data	
Assortments	OPPLE Lighting (OPP_NL)	
Format type	Custom layout	
Layout	Excel import lay-out 'Standaard product import in Excel - L03 (v2.3)' or 🕶 🗱 🖶	
Delta	① Yes ○ No	
Remove file after processing	⊖ Yes ● No	
Frequency	Monthly	
Day of the month	3 28	
Sequence no	1	
Import file	Excel-Products.xlsx X	
	/Data/Environments/000003/Uploads/Import/Excel-Products.xlsx	
Source or target		

- a. Task entity: Select the entity for which you are importing data.
- b. Assortments: Select an assortment for which you are importing data.
- c. Format type: Select the format Custom layout
- d. Layout: Select the correct Import layout.
- e. Delta: Set to **Yes** to only import changes. When set to **No**, all records that are not in the file are marked as **Archived** in the database.
- f. Remove file after processing: Set to **Yes** to remove the data file from the Compano server. When set to **No**, the file will remain on the Compano server.
- g. Import file: Use the -button to select a data file for import from the *Uploads* > *Import* folder⁴.
- h. Source or target: Alternatively, first enter an external FTP location and enter the FTP login details in the fields that appear. <u>Note</u>: make sure to specify the complete path to the import file:

Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	€ Oves ● No	
Periodic task type		
Task entity	Assortments	
Description	Weekly import assortiment	
Format type	Custom layout	
Layout	Text import lay-out 'Import assortment' on Screen assortments	'
Delta	I ● Yes ○ No	
Remove file after processing	○ Yes ● No	
Frequency	Weekly 🗸	
Day of the week	Monday 🗸	
Sequence no	1	
Import file	my-import-file.txt X	
	ftps://www.compano.com/uploads/Import/my-import-file.txt	
Source or target	ftps://www.compano.com/uploads/Import/my-import-file.txt	
FTP(S) User name	my-username	
FTP(S) Password	······	
	Edit the previous on Edit the next one Save record Can	cel

⁴ When uploading new, updated data files make sure that the file name stays exactly the same, otherwise the import will fail.

🤗 🌮 🛄

- i. (S)FPT(S) Username: Enter the FTP(S) username.
- ii. (S)FTP(S) Password: Enter the FTP(S) password.
- 5. Save the record.

3.1.2 Automated imports (industry standard data)

Automated imports of *Industry Standard data* files (PAB, DICO/INSBOU, DICO/SALES, BMEcat) from and *external FTP-location* can also be automated, using FTPS and the folders **AutoImport** and **AutoCheck** under the folder **Uploads** on the Compano server. This kind of automation does *not* make use of Periodic Tasks. See the <u>Manual COS Basics</u>, <u>Manual Universal Import/Export</u> and/or the <u>Handleiding Aanleveren data aan Artikelbeheer.n/</u> for further information.

<u>Important</u>: For (automated) uploads an *extra* FTPS user account is needed, which will give you access to the folder **Uploads**; any additional folders should be added under this **Uploads** folder. Please contact <u>sales@compano.com</u> for further information on options and pricing.

3.1.3 Interdependent imports

Some data types, such as Contacts or Product Groups, require multiple, interdependent imports and thus multiple periodic import tasks, which also need to be started in a particular order.

The order in which Periodic Tasks are started can be set by filling out the Sequence Number. Also see: <u>2.2.5 SEQUENCE NO</u>.

Examples

Contacts can be added to Organisations. To import Contacts for new Organisations, first a periodic task for the organisations need to run, after which the contacts can be imported with a second periodic task which runs *after* the first task has finished.

Another example would be the import of new Items and Products; as items are linked to products, the Item import task needs to run *after* the Product import task.

3.2 Export

The Export task type can be used to export data using the following formats:

- PAB
- DICO/INSBOU
- DICO/SALES005
- BMEcat
- Custom layout (XLSX, CSV or Unicode-TXT)

💕 🌮 💭

Add - New periodic tasks		
Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	🚯 🖲 Yes 🔿 No	
Periodic task type	Export	~
Task entity	Item	- 💥
Description	Daily export items	
Assortments	OPPLE Lighting (OPP NL)	- %
Language	en English	- 🗙
Format type	Custom layout	
Layout	Excel export lay-out 'COS - ItemProduct' on Screen item search	h 🔸 😽 🖌
Overwrite existing file Frequency Day of the week Sequence no Export directory Source or target	Ves No Weekly V Monday V I 1 ftps://myserver.com ftps://myserver.com	
FIP(5) User name	my-usemanie	
FTP(S) Password	•••••	

Settings:

- Task entity: Select the Entity (Item, Product, Assortment, etc.) for which the data is to be exported. <u>Note</u>: Further settings will depend upon this selection; the example here is for the entity *Item*.
- Assortment: Select an Assortment.
- Language: Select the language of the data to be exported; leave empty to export *all* language data.
- Format type: Select an export layout; either an industry standard or a custom layout.
- Layout: For a custom layout, select an export layout. <u>Note</u>: Export layouts can be added through *System > Layouts*.
- Compress: Set to Yes, to export a compressed (zipped) data file. <u>Note</u>: The data file will be exported (compressed) to the application's Download folder. When set to No, the file will be decompressed.
- Overwrite existing file: Set to **Yes**, to allow overwriting of an earlier exported file with the same filename.
- Export directory: Select an Export directory, alternatively you can set an external target directory (FTPS-location).
- Source or target
 - o FTP(S) username: Enter the FTP(S) username for the target location.
 - FTP(S) password: Enter the FTP(S) password for the target location.

3.3 Feed

Use the *Feed task type* to schedule the export of data according to a feed layout.

Note: This is for exporting XML feeds only.

💕 🌮 💭

	Custom layout <u>test import</u>	wee
Wijzigen		
Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	🚺 🖲 Yes 🔾 No	
Periodic task type	Feed	~
Task entity	Item	- 🗶
Description	Feed (XML) export of assortment	
Assortments	OPPLE Lighting (OPP NL)	- 💥
Publication	O on internet In catalog Image: Construction of the second seco	
Layout	Feed lay-out 'ID_OPPLE_ITM' on Screen item search	→ ¥+
Compress	(1) O Yes O No	
Frequency	Weekly 🗸	
Day of the week	Monday 🗸	
Sequence no	(1)	
Export directory	ftp.mycompany.com x	
	ftps://ftp.mycompany.com	
Source or target	ftps://ftp.mycompany.com	
FTP(S) User name	my-username	
FTP(S) Password		
	Add next record Save record	Cancel

Settings:

- Task entity: Select the Entity (Item, Product, Assortment, etc.) for which the data is to be exported. <u>Note</u>: Further settings will depend upon this selection; the example here is for the entity *Item*.
- Assortment: Select an Assortment.
- Publication: Select the publication type of the Items that need to be exported in the feed.
- Layout: Select the Feed Layout for the Feed. <u>Note</u>: Feed layouts can be added through *System > Layouts*.
- Compress: Set to **Yes**, to export a compressed (zipped) data file. <u>Note</u>: The data file will be **exported (uncompressed) to the application's Download folder. From there a compressed** data file will be generated and sent on to an external location. To check whether an export succeeded, you can check the Download folder.
- Export directory: Select an Export directory, alternatively you can set an external target directory (FTPS-location).
- Source or target
 - o (S)FTP(S) username: Enter the FTP, SFTP or FTPS username for the target location.
 - o (S)FTP(S) password: Enter the FTP, SFTP or FTPS password for the target location.

3.4 Magento

Use the *Magento task type* to schedule a data export for a Magento web shop.

🍠 🌮 💭

Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	I O Yes O No	
Periodic task type	Magento	∽
Description	Weekly export for web shop	
Assortments	OPPLE (ass) (OPP_NL)	- 🗶
Frequency	Weekly 🗸	
Day of the week	Monday 🗸	
Sequence no	1	
Export directory	magento X	
	ftps://my-company.com/magento	
Source or target	ftps://my-company.com/magento	
FTP(S) User name	my-username	
FTP(S) Password	······	

Settings:

- Assortment: Select an Assortment.
- Source or target
 - FTP(S) username: Enter the FTP(S) username for the target location (Magento web server).
 - FTP(S) password: Enter the FTP(S) password for the target location (Magento web server).

3.5 Import 2BA

Manufacturer or supplier data on the 2BA data portal can be automatically imported using the *Import 2BA* periodic task:

Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	1 O Yes 🖲 No	
Periodic task type	Import 2BA	
Description	Monthly 2BA import	
Assortments	OPPLE Lighting (OPP_NL)	- 🗱
Changes since:		
Frequency	Monthly	
Day of the month	1	
Sequence no	1	
import file	api.2ba.nl x	
	https://api.2ba.nl	
Source or target	https://api.2ba.nl	
S)FTP(S) User name		
(S)FTP(S) Password	3	
ClientId	·····	
Secret		
		Caract

Settings:

🥩 🌮 💭

- Source or target: Enter the 2BA API address: <u>https://api.2ba.nl</u>
- (S)FTP(S) User name: Enter the username of your 2BA user account
- (S)FTP(S) Password: Enter the password of your 2BA user account
- ClientId: Enter the ClientID provided by 2BA
- Secret: Enter the **secret** provided by 2BA

3.5.1 Import 2BA: Multiple suppliers

The Import 2BA task can be used to import data of multiple suppliers from 2BA.

<u>Note:</u> The method described in this paragraph is recommended for importing data of multiple suppliers which have a small assortment. To prevent *time-out issues*, create individual import tasks for suppliers with a large assortment.

1. Create a new *Import 2BA* task, for example:

Edit - Import2BA Import en o	lagelijkse import alle kleinere leveranciers x	I
Periodic tasks Memo		
Active	🚯 🖲 Yes 🔿 No	
Periodic task type	Import 2BA	~
Description	Import multiple suppliers	
Assortments		- 🗶
Changes since:	(1) 01-05-2021 00:00 (2)	
requency	Daily	
īme		
Sequence no	3	
Source or target	https://api.2ba.nl	
TP User name	inter diese difference	
TP Password	······	
ClientId	······	
Secret	······	
	Edit the previous on Edit the next one	ave record Cancel

- 2. Next, go to *Items > Assortments*, and for each supplier assortment that is to be imported:
 - a. Select the supplier assortment from the overview list
 - b. Click *Edit*, and go to the tab *Artikelbeheer*
 - c. Set *Transfer* option to *Yes*

🥩 🌮 💭

Assortments Artikelbehe	er Countries Memo	
Settings		í
Blocked	Oyes 💿 No	
Queued	I O Yes O No	
Transfer	🗊 🖲 Yes 🔿 No	
Ask for permission	(1) O Yes O No	
Visible	● Yes ○ No	
Mutation email	1 • Yes O No	
Transfer scheme		- 💥
Data		
Transfer date		
	Edit the previous one Edit the next one Save recor	rd Cancel

3. Save the record.

3.6 Export Artikelbeheer.nl

Use the *Export Artikelbeheer* task type to schedule the export of data to the *Artikelbeheer.nl* data pool. The settings for this export are taken from the Export Artikelbeheer function on the Assortment overview.

<u>Note</u>: Uploading to Artikelbeheer.nl is also available as a *manual function* on the Assortments overview.

Periodic tasks Memo	
Active	(1) ● Yes ○ No
Periodic task type	#ExportAB2
Description	Export for Artikelbeheer.nl v2
Assortments	OPPLE Lighting (OPP_NL) 🗾 🗙
Frequency	Weekly
Day of the week	Monday 🗸
Sequence no	3 1
	Add next record Save record Cancel

Important: Only Items with the publication option *Datapool* set to **Yes**, will be exported to Artikelbeheer.nl:

🧳 🌮 💭

140043900 pce	LEDPanelRc-G Sq598-36W-3000-WH-CT		
1 Edit - OPPLE supplier des 140043898x Gewijzigde tekst			
14 Item Gross price	Additional Commercial description (en-GB)	Technical description (en-G	
12 Publication 12 14	 ③ On internet ○ On webshop ☑ Datapool 	□In catalog □ERP □Calculation	